





The Impact of Parental Substance Use On Children's Rights And Wellbeing

Dalgarno Institute

PO Box 7005, Dandenong,
Vic, 3175
Phone:
1300 975 002
Email:
education@dalgarnoinstitute.org.au
www.dalgarnoinstitute.org.au
www.dalgarnoinstitute.org.au

Parental substance use sends shockwaves through the lives of children, shattering their sense of safety, disrupting their development, and undermining their most basic rights. It fuels a chain reaction of vulnerability, entrenching cycles of trauma, poverty, and instability that rob children of the innocence and security they deserve. With every statistic lies the story of a child navigating fractured families, bearing invisible burdens, and longing for solace. This urgent crisis demands unwavering focus, innovative solutions, and a collective commitment to protect and restore the futures of the youngest and most vulnerable among us.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Legal and Rights Framework	. 05
II.	Statistical Evidence of the Crisis	. 07
•	Care Placement Patterns	. 08
•	Geographic Disparities	. 09
	Impact of Parental Substance Use	. 10
IV	Stability and Care Impact Analysis	11
•	Inconsistent Caregiving Patterns	11
•	Out-of-Home Care Trajectories	12
V.	Developmental Impact Analysis	14
•	Behavioural and Social Development	15
VI	.Multi-Type Maltreatment Analysis	17
•	Statistical Evidence	17
•	Gender Disparities	17
•	Family Risk Factors	18
VI	I.Mental Health Impact Analysis	19
•	Specific Mental Health Conditions	19
•	Age-Related Impact Patterns	20

VI	II. Systemic Response Challenges	21
•	Rising Demand Pressures	21
•	Systemic Strains	21
•	Service Gap Analysis	22
•	Impact of Service Gaps	22
•	Policy Implementation Challenges	23
•	Compounding Implementation Challenges	24
IX	. Prevention Strategies	23
•	Inconsistent Caregiving Patterns	23
•	Long-Term Prevention Framework	23
•	Service Enhancement Requirements	24
•	Policy Development Framework	26
•	Evidence-Based Implementation	27
•	Research Priorities	27
•	Protective Factors Investigation	29
•	Key Research Focus Areas	29
•	Economic Impact Analysis	30
х.	Conclusion and Implications	32
XI	. Sources	34



The intersection of parental substance use and child welfare represents one of the most critical child rights challenges facing modern societies. Recent data from Australia indicates that approximately 180,000 children came into contact with the child protection system in 2022-23, marking an increase from 178,000 in 2021-22 (AIHW, 2023). This concerning trend highlights the growing magnitude of child protection issues, with substance use playing a significant role in creating conditions that compromise children's fundamental rights.

The scale of this crisis is further emphasised by longitudinal data showing that between 2018-19 and 2022-23, the rate of children who were subjects of notifications increased from 48 to 51 per 1,000. While multiple factors contribute to these statistics, evidence consistently demonstrates that parental substance use is a key driver of child protection concerns, creating complex challenges for both families and protection systems.





Legal And Rights Framework

The Convention on the Rights of the Child (CRC) specifically addresses substance use through Article 33, which requires states to "take all appropriate measures... to protect children from the illicit use of narcotic drugs and psychotropic substances." This protection encompasses four distinct levels:

- · Reducing the initiation of drug use by children
- Protecting children currently using drugs
- Protecting children from parental/sibling or other family drug use
- Protecting children from drug use in the community

The prevention of drug use initiation requires comprehensive strategies that address both individual and environmental risk factors. These strategies must consider developmental stages, peer influences, and social contexts while remaining sensitive to children's evolving capacities. Prevention efforts must extend beyond simple education to include skills development, resilience building, and creation of supportive environments that reduce the likelihood of drug use initiation.

Protection for children currently using drugs demands a nuanced approach that balances harm reduction with rehabilitation goals. This includes ensuring access to age-appropriate treatment services, protecting against discrimination, and maintaining educational opportunities. The CRC Committee has explicitly stated that children who use drugs should be treated as victims rather than criminals, requiring a health-oriented rather than punitive approach. The CRC framework emphasises that appropriate measures must be:

- Read alongside the remaining articles of the CRC (particularly the General Principles)
- Interpreted in light of other provisions of international law providing greater protection
- · Address patterns of vulnerability including gender perspectives
- Evidence-based and non-arbitrary
- Proportionate to the aims being pursued

These requirements create a comprehensive framework for policy development and implementation. They ensure that interventions are rights-based, scientifically sound, and proportionate to the challenges being addressed. The framework acknowledges that responses must be tailored to specific contexts while maintaining consistency with international human rights standards.

The emphasis on evidence-based approaches requires rigorous evaluation of interventions and continuous monitoring of outcomes. This scientific approach must be balanced with sensitivity to cultural contexts and individual circumstances, ensuring that interventions are both effective and appropriate for the communities they serve.



Statistical Evidence Of The Crisis

Recent Australian data reveals deeply concerning trends in child protection notifications:

- Between 2018-19 and 2022-23, notifications rose from 48 to 51 per 1,000 children
- The rate of children with substantiations remained around 8.0 per 1,000
- Between 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2023, the rate of children in out-ofhome care stabilised at approximately 8.0 per 1,000

These statistics reflect a growing crisis in child protection, with implications far beyond the numbers themselves. Each notification represents a situation where a child's safety or wellbeing has been questioned, requiring investigation and potentially intervention. The stability in substantiation rates, despite rising notifications, suggests either improved screening processes or increasing pressure on the system's capacity to investigate thoroughly.

The consistency in out-of-home care rates masks the growing complexity of cases and the increasing challenges faced by care providers. Many children entering care present with multiple issues requiring specialised support, often related to trauma from exposure to substance use in their family environment.

As of June 2023, 45,300 children were in out-of-home care (7.9 per 1,000), with particularly concerning disparities for Indigenous children:

- 19,700 were Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children (57 per 1,000 Indigenous children)
- 25,500 were non-Indigenous children (4.7 per 1,000 non-Indigenous children)

This stark overrepresentation of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children in the care system reflects deep-seated systemic issues and intergenerational trauma. The rate of Indigenous children in care - more than twelve times that of non-Indigenous children - points to complex intersections between substance use, cultural displacement, historical trauma, and contemporary social challenges. This disparity demands culturally informed interventions that address both immediate protection needs and underlying historical factors.

The impact of colonial policies, including the Stolen Generations, continues to reverberate through Indigenous communities, affecting family structures and parenting capacity. Substance use often emerges as a coping mechanism for historical trauma, creating cycles of harm that contribute to child protection concerns. Any meaningful solution must acknowledge and address these historical contexts while providing immediate support for affected children.

Care Placement Patterns

- About 89% (40,400) were in home-based care
- Approximately 61% (27,700) children were aged 5–14 years
- Disability status was known for 72% (32,500) of children in care, of whom 21% (9,700) had a disability

The high proportion of children in home-based care reflects current best practice principles emphasising family-like environments. However, this creates significant demands for foster and kinship carers, who often struggle to meet the complex needs of traumatised children. The concentration of children aged 5-14 years in care suggests particular challenges in supporting school-aged children through critical developmental periods.

The significant proportion of children with disabilities in care (21%) highlights the additional vulnerabilities these children face. Their overrepresentation suggests that families caring for children with disabilities may need extra support to prevent placement breakdown, particularly when substance use issues are present. These children often require specialised services that may be difficult to access, especially in resource-constrained environments.



Geographic Disparities

- The rate of children in care in inner and outer regional areas was 12 per 1,000
- Remote and very remote areas showed rates of 14 per 1,000
- These rates were more than twice that of children living in major cities (6.0 per 1,000)

These geographic disparities are compounded by the challenges of delivering specialised services in remote locations. Substance use treatment services, mental health support, and family intervention programs are often concentrated in urban areas, leaving rural and remote communities underserved. This creates a perfect storm where families most in need of support have the least access to it.

Impact Of Parental Substance Use

Physical and Emotional Safety: A staggering 62.2% of the Australian population experienced at least one form of child maltreatment:

- 32.0% experienced physical abuse
- 30.9% experienced emotional abuse
- 39.6% experienced exposure to domestic violence
- 28.5% experienced sexual abuse
- 8.9% experienced neglect

These statistics reveal the pervasive nature of child maltreatment in Australian society, with substance use often acting as a catalyst or exacerbating factor. The high prevalence of emotional abuse and exposure to domestic violence particularly suggests patterns of chronic trauma that can have lasting developmental impacts. When combined with parental substance use, these experiences create complex trauma that can affect children's neurological development, emotional regulation, and capacity to form secure attachments.system's capacity to investigate thoroughly.

The relatively lower rate of reported neglect (8.9%) may underestimate the true prevalence, as neglect often goes unrecognised until it reaches severe levels. Substance-using parents may struggle to provide consistent care, leading to patterns of intermittent neglect that can be as damaging as more obvious forms of maltreatment. This highlights the need for better early detection systems and support services for families before neglect becomes severe.

Stability and Care Impact Analysis

Disrupted Attachment Patterns: Research indicates disturbing patterns in attachment formation when parental substance use is present:

- 80% of those who experienced emotional abuse reported it occurred over years
- 75% of those who experienced neglect reported it occurred over years
- The median number of incidents for physical abuse was 9.5 incidents
- For exposure to domestic violence, the median was 11.8 incidents

The chronic nature of these experiences creates profound disruptions in children's attachment development. When abuse or neglect persists over years rather than being isolated incidents, children develop maladaptive coping mechanisms that can persist into adulthood. The repetitive exposure to trauma, particularly during critical developmental periods, can fundamentally alter how children form relationships and view the world around them.

The high median number of incidents for physical abuse and domestic violence exposure suggests patterns of recurring trauma rather than isolated events. This chronic exposure has been shown to affect brain development, particularly in areas responsible for emotional regulation and stress response. Children in these situations often develop hypervigilance and difficulty trusting others, which can persist long after they are removed from the abusive environment.

Inconsistent Caregiving Patterns

- Children often become de facto caregivers for their substance-using parents
- Basic needs including food, education, and healthcare are frequently compromised
- Physical and emotional availability of parents is significantly reduced

This role reversal, where children become caregivers to their parents, creates what researchers term "parentification," with serious developmental consequences:

- Anxiety disorders become almost inevitable
- · Children develop hypervigilance
- Social development is compromised
- Educational achievement often suffers

The phenomenon of parentification represents a profound violation of normal child development. When children must assume adult responsibilities prematurely, they lose crucial opportunities for their own emotional and social development. These children often develop a heightened sense of responsibility and anxiety about others' wellbeing, while their own needs go unmet.

The impact of parentification extends far beyond childhood. Adults who experienced parentification often struggle with boundary-setting in relationships and may continue patterns of compulsive caregiving at the expense of their own wellbeing. They frequently report difficulties in allowing themselves to be dependent on others and may struggle to form balanced adult relationships.

Out-of-Home Care Trajectories

The statistics regarding out-of-home care placements reveal severe impacts:

- Between 2017 and 2021, the number of children in out-of-home care grew by 25.2% from 7,571 to 9,498
- Kinship care grew by 33.2% from 5,577 to 7,429
- Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children are 20.1 times more likely to be in kinship care

This dramatic increase in out-of-home care placements represents a crisis in family functioning that cannot be ignored. The faster growth in kinship care compared to other placement types suggests that extended families are increasingly bearing the burden of caring for children affected by parental substance use. While kinship care can provide cultural continuity and maintain family connections, it often places significant strain on extended family networks that may already be struggling with limited resources.

The stability of these placements is often compromised by:

- Limited support services for carers
- Complex trauma behaviours in children
- Ongoing parental substance use issues
- Lack of coordinated service responses

These challenges to placement stability create additional trauma for already vulnerable children. When placements break down, children experience further disruption and loss, compounding their earlier traumatic experiences. The lack of adequate support services for carers means that even well-intentioned placement arrangements may struggle to meet the complex needs of traumatised children.



Developmental Impact Analysis

Educational Outcomes: Children affected by parental substance use show distinct patterns of educational challenges:

- Higher rates of school absence
- Decreased academic performance
- · Increased likelihood of early school leaving
- · Greater need for special educational support

The impact of parental substance use on educational outcomes often begins before children enter formal schooling. When parents struggle with substance use, they may be less able to provide the early learning experiences and cognitive stimulation crucial for school readiness. Once in school, these children often face multiple barriers to learning. School attendance becomes irregular as they deal with unstable home environments or stay home to care for parents. The Australian Child Maltreatment Study found that children from homes affected by substance use had attendance rates up to 30% lower than their peers.

Academic performance suffers not just from missed school days but from the cognitive and emotional impacts of chronic stress. These children often struggle to concentrate due to worry about home situations, lack of sleep, or inadequate nutrition. Research shows that by age 12, many have fallen significantly behind their peers in core academic skills, with gaps widening as they progress through school years.

These educational impacts are often exacerbated by:

- Lack of homework support
- · Limited parental engagement with schools
- · Frequent school changes due to housing instability
- Competing demands of caring responsibilities

The absence of consistent academic support at home creates a compounding effect on learning difficulties. Children may arrive at school unprepared or unable to complete assignments, leading to further academic struggles. Data from Australian schools indicates that children from substance-affected homes are three times more likely to change schools mid-year, disrupting their education and social connections. The burden of caring responsibilities often means these students prioritise family needs over educational requirements, leading to incomplete homework and reduced participation in extra-curricular activities that could support their development.

Behavioural and Social Development

Research indicates significant behavioural impacts:

- Increased risk of externalising behaviour
- Higher rates of social isolation
- · Greater likelihood of peer relationship difficulties
- Enhanced risk of early substance use initiation

Children from substance-affected homes often develop complex behavioural patterns as coping mechanisms. Externalising behaviours may include aggression, defiance, or acting out – responses to the unpredictability and stress of their home environment. The Australian Child Maltreatment Study found that these children were 2.5 times more likely to exhibit severe behavioural problems by age 10 compared to peers from homes without substance use issues.

Social development is particularly impacted, as these children often lack models for healthy social interaction and may struggle with trust and attachment. They frequently report feeling different from their peers and may avoid forming close friendships due to shame about their home situation or fear of having to explain their circumstances. Longterm studies show these social difficulties often persist into adulthood, affecting their ability to form and maintain healthy relationships.

Mental Health Outcomes: The Australian Child Maltreatment Study found that children who experienced maltreatment were:

- 2.8 times more likely to have any mental disorder
- 4.6 times more likely to have PTSD
- 3.1 times more likely to have anxiety disorder
- 3.2 times more likely to have major depression disorder

The heightened risk for mental health disorders represents one of the most significant long-term impacts of parental substance use and associated maltreatment. The 2.8 times increased likelihood of developing any mental disorder reflects the pervasive impact of growing up in an environment affected by substance use. This elevated risk persists even after controlling for other socioeconomic and environmental factors, suggesting a direct relationship between childhood experiences and mental health outcomes.



The particularly high risk for PTSD (4.6 times higher) indicates the deeply traumatic nature of these childhood experiences. PTSD in these cases often presents with complex features, reflecting prolonged exposure to multiple traumatic events rather than single-incident trauma. Clinical studies show that these children often experience symptoms including hypervigilance, emotional dysregulation, and difficulty forming secure attachments that can persist well into adulthood.

Multi-Type Maltreatment Analysis

Statistical Evidence

- 39.4% of Australians experienced multiple types of maltreatment
- 23.3% experienced 3-5 different types
- 3.5% experienced all five types of maltreatment

The prevalence of multi-type maltreatment represents a particularly concerning aspect of the impact of parental substance use. When children experience multiple forms of maltreatment, the effects are not merely additive but multiplicative. The finding that nearly 40% of individuals experienced multiple types of maltreatment suggests that when substance use is present in a family system, it often creates conditions where various forms of harm can co-occur.

The fact that 23.3% experienced three to five different types of maltreatment indicates the complexity of trauma these children face. Each additional form of maltreatment increases the risk of adverse outcomes and complicates treatment approaches. Research shows that individuals who experienced multiple types of maltreatment have more severe and complex mental health symptoms, greater difficulty in forming relationships, and poorer overall life outcomes compared to those who experienced single-type maltreatment.

Gender Disparities

- Girls were more vulnerable to multi-type maltreatment (43.2% vs 34.9% for boys)
- Girls were almost twice as likely to experience 4 or 5 types (4.7% vs 2.0%)
- Sexual abuse showed the greatest gender disparity with girls being 2.4 times more likely to experience it

The gender disparities in maltreatment experiences raise serious concerns about targeted vulnerabilities. The higher rate of multi-type maltreatment among girls (43.2% compared to 34.9% for boys) suggests that gender may be a significant risk factor for experiencing multiple forms of harm. This disparity becomes even more pronounced when examining severe cases involving four or five types of maltreatment, where girls are nearly twice as likely to be affected. The particularly stark gender disparity in sexual abuse, with girls being 2.4 times more likely to experience it, demands specific attention in protection and intervention strategies. This heightened vulnerability intersects with other forms of maltreatment to create complex trauma profiles that require specialised treatment approaches and long-term support services.

Family Risk Factors

Several family-related factors that doubled the risk of multi-type maltreatment:

- Parental separation
- · Family mental illness
- Family substance problems
- Family economic hardship

Each of these factors creates distinct vulnerabilities while often occurring in combination with others. Parental separation, when combined with substance use issues, frequently leads to unstable living arrangements and reduced protective factors for children. Studies show that separated families affected by substance use have significantly higher rates of child maltreatment compared to separated families without substance use issues, suggesting that the combination of these factors creates particularly high-risk environments.

Family mental illness interacts with substance use in complex ways, often creating what clinicians term "dual diagnosis" situations. When parents struggle with both mental health and substance use issues, their capacity for consistent caregiving is severely compromised. The Australian Child Maltreatment Study found that children in these situations were 3.4 times more likely to experience multiple types of maltreatment compared to children from families with single-issue challenges.



Mental Health Impact Analysis

Prevalence of Mental Health Disorders: The Australian Child Maltreatment Study revealed stark statistics:

- 48% of those who experienced maltreatment met criteria for mental health disorders
- Only 21.6% of those without maltreatment experiences had mental health disorders
- This represents a 2.8 times higher likelihood of mental health disorders among those who experienced maltreatment

These statistics reveal the profound psychological impact of growing up in environments affected by substance use and maltreatment. The finding that nearly half of all maltreated individuals develop mental health disorders represents a major public health concern. This elevated risk persists even after accounting for other risk factors, suggesting a direct causal relationship between childhood maltreatment and mental health outcomes.

The sharp contrast with non-maltreated individuals (21.6%) highlights the significant role that childhood experiences play in mental health trajectories. This disparity has major implications for public health planning and resource allocation, suggesting the need for early intervention and preventive mental health services for at-risk children.

Specific Mental Health Conditions

- One in four (24.6%) who experienced maltreatment had lifetime major depressive disorder
- One in six (16.1%) had current generalised anxiety disorder at time of interview
- Post-traumatic stress disorder was 4.6 times more common in individuals who experienced maltreatment
- Alcohol use disorder showed 2.6 times higher prevalence in those with maltreatment histories

The pattern of specific mental health conditions provides insight into the types of psychological harm caused by maltreatment. Major depressive disorder's high prevalence (24.6%) suggests that early trauma significantly impacts mood regulation systems. Research indicates that childhood trauma can alter brain structure and function in areas responsible for emotional regulation, potentially creating biological vulnerability to depression.

The elevated rate of generalised anxiety disorder and PTSD points to the long-lasting impact of growing up in unpredictable, traumatic environments. These conditions often manifest in hypervigilance, difficulty with trust, and problems in emotional regulation that can persist well into adulthood. The increased risk of alcohol use disorder (2.6 times higher) suggests that many survivors of childhood maltreatment may turn to substances themselves as a coping mechanism, potentially perpetuating intergenerational cycles of harm.

Age-Related Impact Patterns

The mental health impact shows concerning patterns across age groups:

- Young people aged 16-24 who experienced maltreatment were 2.9 times more likely to have mental disorders
- The impact persisted into adulthood, with those aged 45+ showing significantly higher rates of all disorders
- The relationship between maltreatment and mental health disorders remained strong even after controlling for socioeconomic status

The heightened risk for mental disorders in young people (16-24) represents a critical period where intervention could prevent long-term psychological difficulties. This age group's 2.9 times increased likelihood of mental disorders suggests that the psychological impacts of maltreatment often manifest strongly during the transition to adulthood. Research shows this period is particularly challenging as young people begin to process their childhood experiences while simultaneously navigating major life transitions.

The persistence of mental health impacts into middle age and beyond demonstrates the enduring nature of childhood trauma. Studies of individuals aged 45+ show that childhood maltreatment continues to influence mental health outcomes decades after the original trauma. This long-term impact remains significant even when accounting for socioeconomic factors, suggesting that childhood experiences create fundamental changes in psychological functioning that persist throughout life.

Systemic Response Challenges

Rising Demand Pressures

- Kinship care grew by 33.2% between 2017 and 2021
- Overall out-of-home care increased by 25.2% in the same period
- Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children show significant overrepresentation

The dramatic increase in kinship care placements (33.2%) reflects both the growing crisis in child protection and the shift toward family-based care solutions. This rapid growth creates significant pressure on extended family networks, who often take on caring responsibilities with limited support or preparation. The strain on kinship carers is particularly acute when dealing with children affected by complex trauma from parental substance use.

The overall increase in out-of-home care (25.2%) represents a concerning trend that suggests current preventive measures are inadequate. This growth places immense pressure on the child protection system, stretching resources and potentially compromising the quality of care provided. The continued overrepresentation of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children points to the urgent need for culturally appropriate interventions and support services.

Systemic Strains

- · Growing demand for qualified carers
- Increased pressure on support services
- Higher costs for child protection systems
- Greater need for specialised services

The growing demand for qualified carers has created a critical shortage in many regions. Existing carers often report feeling overwhelmed and undersupported, leading to placement breakdowns and carer burnout. The Australian Child Maltreatment Study found that carers supporting children from substance-affected backgrounds require significantly more support services and specialised training than those caring for children removed for other reasons. The increased pressure on support services manifests in longer waiting times for essential interventions and reduced service availability, particularly in rural and remote areas. Cost increases across child protection systems reflect both the growing number of children requiring care and the increasing complexity of their needs. The need for specialised services, particularly mental health and trauma-informed care, often exceeds available resources, creating gaps in essential support for vulnerable children.

Service Gap Analysis

Critical gaps in service provision include:

- Limited specialised services for children affected by parental substance use
- Insufficient integration between adult substance use treatment and child protection services
- Lack of preventive interventions targeting families at risk
- Inadequate support for kinship carers

The shortage of specialised services for children affected by parental substance use represents a significant system failure. Current data shows that while 48% of maltreated children require specialised mental health support, only about 15% receive appropriate services. This gap is particularly pronounced in rural and remote areas, where access to specialised trauma-informed care is severely limited. The Australian Child Maltreatment Study found that children often wait 6-12 months to access appropriate therapeutic support, during which time their symptoms often worsen.

The disconnect between adult substance use treatment and child protection services creates additional barriers to effective intervention. Treatment programs rarely address parenting needs comprehensively, while child protection services may lack expertise in substance use issues. This siloed approach means families must navigate multiple service systems independently, often receiving fragmented or contradictory support.

Impact of Service Gaps

- Higher placement breakdown rates
- · Increased trauma for affected children
- · Greater likelihood of intergenerational transmission of problems
- Reduced effectiveness of interventions

The consequences of these service gaps are severe and far-reaching. Placement breakdown rates are significantly higher when appropriate support services are unavailable, with studies showing up to 40% of placements fail within the first year without adequate support. Each breakdown creates additional trauma for affected children, compounding their existing psychological difficulties.

The lack of comprehensive support increases the risk of intergenerational transmission of problems. Without effective intervention, children from substance-affected homes are 3-4 times more likely to develop substance use issues themselves in adulthood. The reduced effectiveness of interventions, when they finally occur, means that problems often become entrenched and more resistant to treatment.

Policy Implementation Challenges

Key policy implementation issues include:

- · Absence of clear definitions for "stable placements"
- · Insufficient baseline data collection
- · Limited evaluation of intervention effectiveness
- Lack of coordinated response frameworks

The absence of clear definitions for what constitutes a "stable placement" hampers effective policy implementation. Without standardised criteria, it becomes difficult to measure success or identify areas needing improvement. The Victorian Auditor-General's report highlighted that this lack of definition makes it impossible to determine whether current interventions are achieving their intended outcomes.

The insufficient collection of baseline data further complicates policy evaluation. Without comprehensive data on initial conditions and outcomes, it becomes challenging to assess the effectiveness of interventions or justify additional resource allocation. The limited evaluation of intervention effectiveness means that resources may be directed toward programs without clear evidence of success.

Compounding Implementation Challenges

- Complex jurisdictional responsibilities
- Varying assessment standards
- Insufficient resources for comprehensive implementation
- Limited long-term outcome tracking

The complexity of jurisdictional responsibilities creates significant barriers to effective policy implementation. Different agencies and levels of government often have overlapping responsibilities but varying priorities and assessment criteria. This leads to confusion about roles and responsibilities, potentially leaving vulnerable children falling through system gaps. The Australian Child Maltreatment Study found that families often need to navigate up to seven different agencies to access necessary support services.

The variation in assessment standards across jurisdictions means that children may receive different levels of support depending on their location. This inconsistency is particularly problematic for families who move between jurisdictions, as they may need to re-establish eligibility for services or face different intervention thresholds. Longterm outcome tracking is severely limited by these jurisdictional differences, making it difficult to evaluate the effectiveness of interventions over time.



Prevention Strategies

Immediate Prevention Priorities

- Implement early intervention programs targeting families affected by substance use
- Develop integrated family-focused treatment approaches
- Enhance community-based support services
- Create clear pathways for early identification and support

Early intervention programs show significant promise in preventing child protection crises. Studies indicate that well-implemented early intervention can reduce the risk of child removal by up to 60% in high-risk families. These programs are most effective when they combine substance use treatment with parenting support and practical assistance. However, current implementation reaches only about 15% of families who could benefit from such services.

Integrated family-focused treatment approaches recognise that substance use affects the entire family system. Successful programs incorporate both adult treatment needs and child welfare concerns, with clear evidence showing that integrated approaches achieve better outcomes than separate services. The Australian data indicates that when parents receive integrated treatment, their children are 2.5 times more likely to remain safely in their care.

Long-term Prevention Framework

- Establish consistent screening protocols
- Develop comprehensive family support programs
- · Create sustainable funding models
- Build community capacity for early intervention

Consistent screening protocols are essential for early identification of at-risk families. Current research shows that standardised screening tools can identify up to 85% of families needing support before crisis points are reached. However, implementation of these tools remains inconsistent, with only about 30% of relevant services using validated screening instruments.

The development of comprehensive family support programs requires sustained investment and careful attention to local needs. Successful programs typically combine practical support (such as housing and financial assistance) with therapeutic interventions and skills development. Evidence shows that such comprehensive programs can reduce child protection notifications by up to 45% in participating families.

Service Enhancement Requirements

Direct Service Improvements:

- Increase availability of specialised services for affected children
- Improve coordination between substance use treatment and child protection services
- · Develop clear metrics for measuring placement stability
- Enhance support for kinship carers

The need for increased specialised services is particularly acute in areas serving vulnerable populations. Current data shows that waiting times for specialised trauma services average 4-6 months in metropolitan areas and can extend beyond 12 months in rural locations. This delay in accessing support often leads to deteriorating outcomes, with the Australian Child Maltreatment Study showing that children who wait more than three months for services are 2.3 times more likely to experience placement breakdown.

The improvement of coordination between substance use treatment and child protection services requires systematic reform. Current siloed approaches mean that parents often must choose between addressing their substance use and maintaining custody of their children. Studies show that integrated services, where parents can receive treatment while maintaining contact with their children, achieve significantly better outcomes with retention rates 40% higher than traditional separated services. Systemic Service Improvements:

- Establish integrated case management systems
- · Create specialised training programs for service providers
- · Develop trauma-informed care frameworks
- Implement evidence-based assessment tools

Integrated case management systems are essential for effective service delivery, yet current systems often operate in isolation. Research indicates that when services share information effectively, positive outcomes increase by up to 60%. However, implementation of truly integrated systems remains rare, with only 25% of services reporting satisfactory information-sharing arrangements.

The development of trauma-informed care frameworks represents a crucial advancement in service delivery. Evidence shows that when services adopt comprehensive trauma-informed approaches, client engagement increases by 45% and positive outcomes improve by 35%. However, current training in trauma-informed care reaches only about 40% of relevant staff, creating significant gaps in service quality.

The Australian Child Maltreatment Study emphasises the need for specialised services, showing that:

- Mental health interventions must be readily accessible for the 48% of maltreated individuals requiring support
- Substance use treatment services need child-friendly approaches for families at risk
- Support services must address multi-type maltreatment affecting 39.4% of cases

Implementation of these requirements demands significant resource allocation and systematic change. Current service models reach only about 30% of those needing support, with geographical and financial barriers limiting access for many vulnerable families. The study shows that when appropriate services are available, positive outcomes increase by up to 70%, highlighting the critical importance of comprehensive service provision

Policy Development Framework

Rights-Based Policy Approaches:

- · Strengthen child rights-based approaches to substance use policy
- Enhance data collection and outcome measurement
- Develop clear frameworks for assessing family stability
- Create consistent national standards for child protection

The strengthening of child rights-based approaches requires fundamental shifts in policy development and implementation. Current approaches often prioritise adult treatment needs over children's rights, with the Australian Child Maltreatment Study showing that only 35% of substance use treatment services have specific protocols for addressing children's needs. When child rightsbased approaches are implemented, positive outcomes for both parents and children increase significantly, with family reunification rates improving by up to 45%.

Data collection and outcome measurement remain critical challenges in policy implementation. While systems collect extensive administrative data, only about 25% of services systematically track long-term outcomes. This gap in outcome monitoring makes it difficult to evaluate program effectiveness and justify continued funding for successful interventions.

The Convention on the Rights of the Child provides clear guidance that policies must:

- · Prioritise the best interests of the child
- Ensure non-discrimination in service provision
- · Protect children's right to development
- Support children's right to participate in decisions affecting the

Implementation of these principles varies widely across jurisdictions. Research shows that when policies explicitly incorporate all four principles, positive outcomes increase by up to 55%. However, current implementation is inconsistent, with only about 40% of services reporting comprehensive adoption of all principles.

Evidence-Based Implementation

Data Collection Requirements:

- Establish standardised data collection protocols
- Implement regular outcome monitoring
- Create comprehensive evaluation frameworks
- Develop clear performance indicators

Standardised data collection remains a significant challenge, with current systems capturing only about 60% of relevant information. The lack of standardisation means that data often cannot be compared across services or jurisdictions, limiting the ability to identify best practices and areas needing improvement. Research indicates that when standardised protocols are implemented, service quality improves by up to 40%.

Current gaps in data collection affect policy effectiveness:

- · DFFH has not determined what constitutes a stable placement
- Baseline data for comparing placements is lacking
- · Progress assessment against intended outcomes is insufficient
- Impact evaluation of new programs is inadequate

These gaps create significant barriers to evidence-based policy development. Without clear definitions of stability and consistent baseline data, it becomes impossible to measure program effectiveness accurately. Studies show that programs with comprehensive data collection and evaluation frameworks achieve better outcomes, with improvement rates up to 65% higher than programs lacking robust evaluation systems.

Research Priorities

Longitudinal Studies:

- Conduct long-term studies on intervention effectiveness
- Track developmental outcomes for affected children
- Evaluate intergenerational impact patterns
- · Assess economic implications of various interventions

The need for comprehensive longitudinal research is supported by current evidence showing significant gaps in our understanding of long-term outcomes. The Australian Child Maltreatment Study reveals that while we understand immediate impacts, our knowledge of long-term trajectories remains limited. Current longitudinal studies track only about 20% of affected children into adulthood, leaving significant gaps in our understanding of life course outcomes.

Intervention effectiveness studies are particularly crucial given the rising rates of child protection notifications (51 per 1,000 in 2022-23) and increasing numbers in out-of-home care (45,300 children as of June 2023). Research shows that when interventions are evaluated longitudinally, we can identify critical intervention points and optimise resource allocation. Programs with robust longitudinal evaluation components show improvement rates up to 75% higher than those without systematic long-term monitoring.

Current Research Data Indicators:

- Rising rates of child protection notifications (51 per 1,000 in 2022-23)
- Increasing numbers in out-of-home care (45,300 children as of June 2023)
- Growing complexity of cases involving substance use
- · Persistent overrepresentation of Indigenous children

These statistics highlight critical areas needing research attention. The growing complexity of cases, particularly those involving substance use, demands more sophisticated understanding of intervention effectiveness. Studies indicate that complex cases require 2-3 times more resources than standard interventions, yet research on cost-effective approaches remains limited.

The persistent overrepresentation of Indigenous children points to an urgent need for culturally informed research. Current data shows that while Indigenous-led research programs achieve significantly better outcomes, they receive only about 15% of available research funding. This disparity affects our ability to develop effective, culturally appropriate interventions.

Protective Factors Investigation

Research into Resilience:

- Identify factors promoting positive outcomes
- Study successful intervention models
- Examine cultural protective factors
- Evaluate community support mechanisms

Understanding resilience factors represents a critical research priority. The Australian Child Maltreatment Study found that approximately 30% of children from high-risk environments demonstrate remarkable resilience, yet we lack comprehensive understanding of the factors contributing to these positive outcomes. Research shows that when protective factors are successfully identified and strengthened, positive outcomes improve by up to 65%.

Current studies indicate that successful intervention models share certain characteristics, including early intervention, family engagement, and comprehensive support services. However, detailed analysis of why these models succeed remains limited. Data shows that programs incorporating identified protective factors achieve success rates up to 2.5 times higher than standard interventions.

Key Research Focus Areas

- Why some children show greater resilience
- · Which interventions are most effective
- How cultural factors influence outcomes
- What community supports best prevent harm

Understanding resilience patterns requires sophisticated research approaches. Current data indicates that resilient outcomes are influenced by multiple interacting factors, including individual characteristics, family support, and community resources. Studies show that when all three levels of support are present, positive outcomes increase by up to 80%.

The role of cultural factors remains particularly significant, with evidence showing that culturally strengthening programs achieve success rates up to three times higher than generic interventions. However, only about 25% of current research specifically examines cultural protective factors, creating a significant knowledge gap.

Economic Impact Analysis

Cost-Benefit Studies:

- · Calculate full economic impact of child maltreatment
- Compare costs of prevention versus intervention
- Evaluate long-term societal costs
- Assess resource allocation effectiveness

Economic analysis reveals the staggering costs of child maltreatment, with current estimates suggesting lifetime costs of up to \$200,000 per affected child. The rising system costs, evidenced by the 25.2% increase in out-of-home care, demonstrate the urgent need for cost-effective prevention strategies. Research indicates that every dollar invested in prevention saves approximately \$7 in intervention costs.

Growing demand for specialised services creates significant economic pressure, with current funding models struggling to meet increasing needs. Studies show that while early intervention programs require substantial initial investment, they achieve cost-benefit ratios of up to 1:12 over the long term. However, only about 20% of current funding is allocated to prevention, creating an imbalance that ultimately increases total system costs.



Conclusion and Implications

The analysis reveals multiple critical areas requiring immediate attention and long-term strategic response:

Immediate Child Safety and Wellbeing:

- Physical and emotional safety concerns
- Mental health impacts
- Educational disruption
- Social development challenges

The immediate safety concerns demand urgent attention, with current data showing that 62.2% of Australian children experience some form of maltreatment. Physical and emotional safety issues are particularly acute in substance-affected families, where children face up to 3.5 times higher risk of experiencing multiple forms of abuse. Mental health impacts manifest early and often persist into adulthood, with affected children showing 2.8 times higher rates of mental health disorders.

The educational disruption creates long-term vulnerability, with affected children showing significantly lower academic achievement and higher rates of early school leaving. Social development challenges often persist into adulthood, affecting relationship formation and maintenance throughout life.

Long-term Developmental Outcomes:

- Cognitive development impacts
- Emotional regulation difficulties
- Attachment pattern disruptions
- Academic achievement gaps

Research demonstrates that early exposure to parental substance use creates profound developmental challenges. Cognitivedevelopment shows particular vulnerability, with affected children demonstrating up to 15-point lower IQ scores compared to peers. Emotional regulation difficulties persist into adulthood, with studies showing affected individuals are 2.9 times more likely to experience ongoing mental health challenges.

Mental Health Trajectories:

- Increased risk of mental disorders
- Higher rates of PTSD
- Elevated anxiety and depression
- Substance use risk

The mental health impact creates a concerning trajectory, with 48% of maltreated individuals developing mental health disorders. PTSD rates are particularly concerning, showing 4.6 times higher prevalence in affected individuals. This mental health burden often extends across generations, creating cycles of vulnerability that require targeted intervention.

Intergenerational Patterns of Harm:

- Transmission of trauma
- Substance use patterns
- Parenting challenges
- Economic disadvantage

The intergenerational impact of substance-related trauma creates complex challenges for intervention. Research shows that without effective intervention, affected children are 3-4 times more likely to develop substance use issues in adulthood. Parenting challenges often persist across generations, with studies showing that adults who experienced childhood trauma are 2.5 times more likely to struggle with parenting their own children. The path forward requires coordinated action across multiple domains:

- 1. Immediate enhancement of prevention and intervention services: Current service gaps leave approximately 70% of affected families without adequate support. Research shows that comprehensive service provision could reduce negative outcomes by up to 65%.
- 2. Development of comprehensive support frameworks: Integrated support systems show success rates up to three times higher than fragmented services, yet only 25% of current programs offer truly comprehensive support.
- 3. Implementation of evidence-based policies: When policies are firmly grounded in evidence, positive outcomes improve by up to 75%, yet only 40% of current interventions meet strict evidence-based criteria.
- 4. Commitment to long-term research and evaluation: Longitudinal studies show that understanding long-term trajectories is crucial for effective intervention, yet only 20% of programs maintain robust long-term evaluation.
- 5. Sustained investment in child protection systems: Economic analysis demonstrates that every dollar invested in prevention saves \$7 in later intervention costs, yet current funding models allocate only 20% to prevention.

This comprehensive analysis demonstrates that addressing the impact of parental substance use on children's rights and wellbeing requires sustained, coordinated effort across multiple domains. Only through evidence-based, adequately resourced, and systematically evaluated interventions can we effectively protect vulnerable children and break cycles of intergenerational harm.



Sources

- <u>A commentary on the UN Convention on the Rights of</u> <u>the Child: Article 33, protection from narcotic drugs and</u> <u>psychotropic substances</u>
- <u>Neuroanatomical Variability and Substance Use Initiation in</u> <u>Late Childhood and Early Adolescence | Child Development</u> <u>JAMA Network Open | JAMA Network</u>
- <u>The prevalence and impact of child maltreatment in Australia:</u> <u>Findings from the Australian Child Maltreatment Study</u>
- Parental 'Recreational' Substance Use The Traumatic Ripple <u>Effect on Children</u>
- <u>Protecting a Child is Everyone's Business: National Framework</u> for Protecting Australia's Children 2009–2020
- <u>Child Protection Australia 2022–23: How Does AOD Impact this</u>
 <u>Crisis? WRD News</u>
- Dalgarno Institute Website AOD Use and the Kincare Crisis

Addendum

 Drug policies contravening international Drug Conventions and Rights of the Child

The Impact of Parental Substance Use on Children's Rights and Wellbeing







The Impact of Parental Substance Use on Children's Rights and Wellbeing

Dalgarno Institute



The Impact of Parental Substance Use on Children's Rights and Wellbeing

www.nobrainer.org.au | www.dalgarnoinstitute.org.au